
GRAND HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP BOARD 

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 28, 2015 
 

WORK SESSION –6:00 P.M. 

1. Discussion of proposed Social Media Policy and Township Facebook page. 

2. Discussion of Buchanan Street Road End -- Possible Addition Stairs. 

 

REGULAR MEETING – 7:00 P.M. 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER  

 

II. PLEDGE TO THE FLAG 

 

III. ROLL CALL 

 

IV. APPROVAL OF MEETING AGENDA  
 

V. CONSENT AGENDA 
1. Approve September 14, 2015 Regular Board Minutes  

2. Approve Payment of Invoices in the amount of $276,392.00 (A/P checks of  

$188,834.62 and payroll of $87,557.38) 

3. Approve Contract Extension for “Electrical Inspection Services, Inc.”  

 

VI. PUBLIC HEARING – Truth in Taxation 

 

VII. OLD BUSINESS 

1. Approve Resolution 15-09-05 – Truth In Taxation 

2. Approve Resolution 15-09-06 - Approve Addition to Personnel Manual, Section 7.25 

"Social Media Policy" 

3. Second Reading – Amendment Park Rules and Regulations Ordinance 

4. Second Reading – Amendment Sewer Rate Ordinance  

5. Second Reading – Amendment Water Rate Ordinance 

 

VIII. NEW BUSINESS 

1. First Reading Rezoning RR to SP – Grand Haven Financial Center (16920 Ferris 

Street) 

 

IX. REPORTS AND CORRESPONDENCE 

1. Correspondence 

2. Committee Reports  

3. Manager’s Report 

a. August Legal Review 

4. Others 

 

X. EXTENDED PUBLIC COMMENTS/QUESTIONS ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS ONLY 

(LIMITED TO THREE MINUTES, PLEASE.) 

 

XI. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

NOTE: The public will be given an opportunity to comment on any agenda item when the item is brought 

up for discussion.  The supervisor will initiate comment time. 



 

 -1- 

GRAND HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP BOARD 

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 14, 2015 

 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

Supervisor French called the regular meeting of the Grand Haven Charter Township 

Board to order at 7:02p.m. 

 

II. PLEDGE TO THE FLAG 

 

III. ROLL CALL 

Board members present: French, Meeusen, Kieft, Hutchins, Behm, Redick, and 

Larsen 

Board members absent:  
 

Also present were Manager Cargo, Human Resources Director Proksa, and Assessor 

Chalifoux. 

 

IV.       APPROVAL OF MEETING AGENDA 

 Motion by Clerk Larsen and seconded by Supervisor French to approve the meeting 

agenda. Which motion carried. 

 

V. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

1. August 24, 2015 Regular Board Minutes  

2. Approve Payment of Invoices in the amount of $368,075.59 (A/P checks of 

$254,711.64 and payroll of $113,363.95) 

3. Approve Hofma Park - Parking Lot Expansion Bid ($75,797.50 through Accurate 

Excavators, LLC.) 

4. Approve Sale of Surplus Equipment as listed in September 10, 2015 memorandum 

through Miedema Asset Management Group 

5. Approve Purchase of Replacement Vehicle ($25,767 through Great Lakes Ford) 

 

Motion by Treasurer Kieft and seconded by Trustee Hutchins to approve the items listed 

on the Consent Agenda.  Which motion carried. 

 

VI. OLD BUSINESS 

1. Motion by Clerk Larsen and seconded by Trustee Meeusen to approve Resolution 15-

09-01 amending Section 8.1 of Discipline of the Personnel Policies and Procedures 

Manual. Which motion carried, as indicated by the following roll call vote: 

Ayes: Larsen, Hutchins, Kieft, Meeusen, Redick, Behm, French 

Nays: 

Absent:  

 

2. The Board discussed a proposed Social Media policy and the creation of a Facebook 

page for Grand Haven Charter Township.  Concerns were raised with regard to 



 

 -2- 

employee comments on social media, in general, because of disciplinary action that 

the Township could take and so-called “trolls” and issues with freedom of speech.  

 

The Board asked staff to complete further research and propose additional controls at 

the September 28
th

 Board work session.   

 

3. Motion by Clerk Larsen and seconded by Trustee Meeusen to approve Resolution 15-

09-03, which schedules the public hearing for September 28, 2015 and proposes the 

additional allowable millage rate to be 0.0615 mills. Which motion carried, as 

indicated by the following roll call vote: 

Ayes:   Kieft, French, Meeusen, Behm, Hutchins, Larsen, Redick  

Nays: 

Absent:  

 

4. Motion by Treasurer Kieft and seconded by Trustee Behm to adopt Resolution 15-

09-04 that adopts the September budget amendments for Fiscal Year 2015, with the 

reduction in Bike Path expenditures being modified from -$210,650 to -$200,650. 

Which motion carried, as indicated by the following roll call vote: 

Ayes: Hutchins, Larsen, Kieft, French, Behm, Meeusen, Redick 

Nays: 

Absent:  

 

5. Motion by Clerk Larsen and seconded by Trustee Meeusen to approve the 2016 

detailed budget assumptions and policies as delineated by the Superintendent within 

the September 10
th

 memorandum and to instruct the Superintendent to proceed with 

the completion of the 2016 Fiscal Year budget for Board review and consideration 

pursuant to state law and the proposed schedule.  Which motion carried. 

 

VII. NEW BUSINESS 

1. Motion by Clerk Larsen and seconded by Trustee Hutchins to postpone further action 

on the proposed amendment to the Parks Rules and Regulations Ordinance pertaining 

to the possession of firearms, until the September 28
th

 Board meeting.  This is a first 

reading. Which motion carried. 

 

2. Motion by Supervisor French and seconded by Trustee Hutchins to postpone further 

action on the proposed amendment to the Water Rate Ordinance, which implements a 

3% per year increase between 2016 and 2020, until the September 28
th

 Board 

meeting.  This is a first reading. Which motion carried. 
 

3. Motion by Trustee Hutchins and seconded by Trustee Behm to postpone further 

action on the proposed amendment to the Sewer Rate Ordinance, which implements a 

3% per year increase between 2016 and 2020, until the September 28
th

 Board 

meeting.  This is a first reading. Which motion carried. 
 

4. Motion by Trustee Hutchins and seconded by Supervisor French to approve with 

conditions the Christopher Geneva Platted Lot Division application for land located at 

Parcel No. 70-07-02-227-016, which is commonly known as 14275 152nd Avenue. 



 

 -3- 

The approval is based on the fact that Supervisor's Plats were created out of 

convenience for the Township, and not by a developer. Furthermore, there is not 

sufficient case law available to provide guidance in this type of situation. Therefore, 

until such case law is established the Township Board shall follow the regulations 

established by the Land Division Act of 1997, as amended, in order to determine if a 

platted lot division application within a Supervisors Plat is eligible to have divisions 

approved by the Planning Commission and Township Board. The approval is 

conditioned upon: 

a) Parcel B shall not have driveway access onto Groesbeck Street because it does 

not meet the minimum lot width requirement. Driveway access shall only be 

granted onto 152nd Avenue. 

b) All residential dwellings shall connect to municipal water. 

c) Legal descriptions for each child parcel must be provided. 

d) Application shall comply with state law. 

Which motion carried. 

 

VIII. REPORTS AND CORESPONDENCE 

a. Correspondence was reviewed 

b. Committee Reports  

i. Clerk Larsen noted that the Elections Commission met and approved five 

individuals as election inspectors.  These new inspectors will be a great 

addition for the upcoming four elections in 2016.     

ii. Trustee Hutchins noted that NORA would be meeting on September 24
th

 at 

5:30 p.m. 

c. Manager’s Report 

i. August Building Report. 

ii. August Ordinance Enforcement Report 

iii. August Public Services Report 

iv. Manager Cargo discussed a possible or perceived conflict of interest with his 

continuing to serve on the NOCH Finance Committee while the Spectrum 

health care PUD amendment is processed.  The Board recommended that 

Manager Cargo resign from the NOCH Committee to avoid any appearance of 

conflict. 

d.  Others 

i. An Election Equipment Vendors Fair will be held this Friday to preview the 

new equipment available which the county and townships will consider for 

purchase in the future.  Board members were invited to attend. 

ii. The Clerk and Deputy Clerk will be doing a survey of all of the precincts to 

ensure handicap accessibility. 

 

IX. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Laird Schaefer (12543 Wilderness Trail) expressed thanks for the follow-up on his 

concerns regarding the condition of the Buchanan Street road end and proposed that the 

Board consider the installation of a boardwalk and stairs at this location.  The Board 

instructed Manager Cargo to forward the Consent Agreement and place this issue on the 

next Board work session.  

 



 

 -4- 

X. ADJOURNMENT 

Motion by Clerk Larsen and seconded by Trustee Hutchins to adjourn the meeting at 

8:23 p.m. Which motion carried.  

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

Laurie Larsen 

Grand Haven Charter Township Clerk 

 

 

 

Karl French 

Grand Haven Charter Township Supervisor 



 
 Page -1- 

 

 

 

 

 

SUPERINTENDENT'S  MEMO 

 

 DATE: September 21, 2015 

 

 TO: Township Board 

 

FROM: Cargo 

 

SUBJECT: Improvements to Buchanan Street Road End   

 

 

Attached, please find a copy of the Buchanan Street Road End Settlement Agreement from 

1996.  The language addressing “Limitations on Facilities and Use” on page 6 has been highlighted 

in yellow. 

 

In order to stimulate discussion during the “Work Session” on September 28
th

, I have 

included an email from Trustee Redick forwarded earlier.  (See below.) 

 
Bill,  

 

It is an interesting legal question, to wit, the extent to which a set of 

stairs could be considered an appropriate method for “stabilizing the 

sand dunes and sandy areas and preventing their erosion” under Para. 11, 

as opposed to constituting prohibited “improvements” or “other facilities 

for use by the public,” under Para. 9.    

 

I can see an argument either way.  It is not helpful, however, that one 

of the specifically prohibited items is “decking.”   “Decking” is 

arguably in a similar category to stairs, and so one could argue that 

stairs would constitute “other facilities for use by the public,” under 

the interpretive rule known as ejusdem generis (i.e., when a generic 

phrase like “other things” follows am express list of specific items, the 

“other things” are construed to be limited to those other things that are 

in the same general class or kind of the list of specific items that 

precedes it).  

 

The counter-argument I believe, it that stairs are not similar to 

decking, inasmuch as decking and the other specifically prohibited items 

(picnic tables, playground equipment, toilets)  are meant to facilitate 

the public’s ability to lounge, play, linger or otherwise remain on the 

road end for an extended time; whereas stairs have arguably the opposite 

function, of facilitating quicker passage through the road end, while at 

the same time better protecting the dunes from the consequent erosion by 

foot traffic.  



 
 Page -2- 

 

Given the closeness of the legal question, I think the stairs would be 

worth pursuing, provided that the Board collectively believes that this 

would be the best method to protect the health, safety and welfare of 

those who use the road end, and to otherwise protect the fragile dune 

environment from the harm of foot traffic.   If the surrounding property 

owners challenged this, in court, as being an alleged violation of the 

Settlement Agreement, I believe this could likely be quickly resolved 

with little legal cost, at a single court hearing, conducted for the 

purpose of having the court decide the strictly legal question stated 

above, in the first para. of this e-mail.  

 

As a larger issue, I question the legality/enforceability of this 

Agreement, for the reason that it arguably constitutes an unlawful 

contractual restriction on the legislative authority of the Board.  That 

is, the Agreement purports to restrict the way in which future Boards 

(and future Road Commissions) can exercise their authority with respect 

to legislative matters (i.e., as opposed to proprietary matters) that 

involve appropriate steps that should be taken to protect the public and 

the environment, in connection with use of the road end.   There is ample 

case law to support the position that such a contractual restriction is 

void and unenforceable.  

 

If the Settlement Agreement had instead been entered by the court as a 

Consent Judgment, my concern might have been addressed.  But from what I 

see, this is not a court judgment.  It is purely a settlement contract, 

not having the force of a judicial order.  As such, it stands in the same 

shoes as any type of contract, and would be subject to the limitation I 

described above (i.e., it cannot restrict the legislature authority of 

future Boards).  

 

So, with these thoughts in mind, I support the concept of stair 

installation to address this problem.   

 

 

Ronald M. Redick 

 

 
From: Bill Cargo 
Sent: Thursday, September 17, 2015 10:43:31 AM (UTC-05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada) 
To: Township Board 
Cc: Laird Schaefer; Mark VerBerkmoes; Dan Tlachac 
Subject: Buchanan Street Settlement Agreement 

To All: 
  

Per the request of the Board, attached please find a .pdf copy of the 

1996 Settlement agreement regarding the use of the Buchanan Street road 

end.   

  

Specifically, please see the highlighted language starting on page 6. 

  

Although I believe that a boardwalk and stairs would help address ongoing 

erosion issues that are typical with a foot path through the dunes, my 



 
 Page -3- 

understanding of the settlement is that a boardwalk and stairs would be 

an “improvement” and not allowed.   

  

However, the Township can continue to address ongoing erosion issues, 

which might be argued could include “stairs.”  (See Section 11, page 8.) 

  

If you want me to research this further or discuss the matter with legal 

counsel, please let me know at the September 28
th
 Board meeting. 

  

Warm Regards, 

  

Bill 

 

 

 I should first note that the Township has not received any complaints regarding the Buchanan 

Street road end, except from one resident.  That said, I believe there are a few policy questions that 

can be discussed by the Board.   

 

First, would “stairs” be considered an improvement (and possibly not allowed under the 

settlement agreement) or a form of erosion control (that might be allowed under the settlement 

agreement).  Also, could other material be use – such as a “mat” at the top of the dune prior to any 

stairs. 

 

Second, if the Board considers “stairs” to be appropriate at this location to limit erosion, 

would the Board want to have Cargo apply for a state grant during FY 2016 and/or include monies in 

the budget for stairs or other erosion control projects?  (This type of a project might be suitable for a 

Land and Water Conservation grant or a Coastal Waterways grant.) 

 

Third, would drawing attention to the Settlement Agreement and having “erosion control” 

projects risk having more strict controls at this location (e.g., no sunbathing, beach usage, etc.)?  If 

the settlement agreement is not binding, could the Township find itself “back” to where it was in 

1996 in a legal argument with the “new” neighbors adjacent to this road end. 

 

There might be other policy issues related to this particular road end that the Board may also 

want to consider. 

 

If you have any questions or comments, please contact me at your convenience. 



~ "' ~· -. ·, 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 
THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE COUNTY OF OTTAWA 

DOUGLAS KOOL, 

Plaintiff, 
VS 

BOARD OF OTTAWA COUNTY 
ROAD COMMISSIONERS, a 
municipal corporation, and 
THE TOWNSHIP OF GRAND 
HAVEN, a municipal 
corporation, 

Defendants, 
and 

MARK WELCH, JUDY BREGMAN, 
JEFFREY HUGHES, NANCY HUGHES, 
At'JNA PONTONI, ROBERT RIEGLER, 
JULIE RIEGLER, CARL WASSON, 
KAREN WASSON, JEFFREY WILLS, 
LESLIE WILLS, DATUS ALLEN, MABEL 
ALLEN, DONALD BETTENDORF and 
SUSAN BETTENDORF, 

Defendant Intervenors. 
__________________________ .! 

Boyd A. Henderson (P-14865) 
i\!Iiller, Johnson, Snell & Cummiskey, P.L.C. 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
250 Monroe, N.W. 
800 Calder Plaza Building 
Grand Rapids, MI 49503 
(616) 459-8311 

Philip R. Sielski (P-30314) 
Attorney for Township of 
Grand Haven 

234'/z Washington Street 
P.O. Box 281 
Grand Haven, MI 49417 
(616) 842-5210 

Case No. 94-20493-CH 

HON. MICHAEL E. KOBZA 

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 

James A. Bidol (P-1 0782) 
Cunningham Dalman, P.C. 
Attorneys for Defendant Board of Ottawa 

County Road Commissioners 
321 Settlers Road, P.O. Box 1767 
Holland, MI 49422-1767 
(616) 392-1821 

Judy E. Bregman (P-32252) 
Bregman & Welch 
Attorneys for 

Defendant Intervenors 
212 Washington, P.O. Box 885 
Grand Haven, MI 49417 
(616) 846-3145 

----------------------------------------------------~/ 



SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 

This Settlement Agreement is executed effectively this __ day of March, 1996, 

by and between Douglas Kool ("Kool"); Board of Ottawa County Road Commissioners 

("Ottawa"); Township of Grand Haven (the "Township"); Mark Welch; Judy Bregman; Jeffrey 

Hughes; Nancy Hughes; Anna Pontoni; Robert Riegler; Julie Riegler; Carl Wasson; Karen 

Wasson; Jeffrey Wills; Leslie Wills; Donald Bettendorf; Susan Bettendorf; Datus Allen; Mabel 

Allen; Martha Jane Quist and Gordon J. Quist. 

Preamble 

The purpose of this agreement is to resolve certain conflicting claims of the parties 

hereto with respect to the following described property which will herewith be referred to as the 

"Subject Property:" 

The North 33 feet of the Northeast fractional one-quarter of 
Section 20, Town 7 North, Range 16 West, Township of Grand 
Haven, Ottawa County, Michigan. 

This agreement will also provide for terms and conditions of settlement and 

dismissal of pending litigation described as Douglas Kool v Board of Ottawa County Road 

Commissioners and Township of Grand Haven et al. being Ottawa County Circuit Court Case 

No. 94-20493-CH ("Litigation"). The Litigation was brought by Kool, as plaintiff, against 

Ottawa and the Township to quiet title to the Subject Property following Kool's acquisition of 

fee simple title of the Subject Property from the Adolphia G. Ettinger Trust. Ottawa and the 

Township opposed Kool's claim alleging certain rights based upon the highway by user statute 

(MCLA 221.20) and common law dedication as more particularly described in the pleadings. 

2 



The remaining parties to this agreement, except for Martha Jane Quist ("Quist") 

and Gordon J. Quist, are individuals who own property on Buchanan Street lying west of 

Lakeshore Drive in Grand Haven Township who have intervened in the Litigation, claiming 

rights in the Subject Property by adverse possession and prescriptive easement as more 

particularly described in the pleadings. These individuals are herewith referred to as the 

"Intervenors." Quist is a party to this agreement for the reason that she owns certain property 

immediately adjacent to and north of the Subject Property which will be affected by this 

Agreement. Her husband is Gordon J. Quist who signs this Agreement to indicate his consent. 

Quist's property is currently subject to a judgment entered in Muller v Ottawa County Road 

Commission, Ottawa County Circuit Court, File No. 2249 (corrected judgment filed April26, 

1992) and is referred to herein as the "Quist Property," which is more particularly described as: 

The South 18 feet of that part of the South Fractional 112 of 
Section 17, Town 7 North, Range 16 West, described as 
commencing 139.26 feet West of the Southeast comer of said 
South Fractional 112, running thence North 183 feet, thence West 
413.2 feet to Lake Michigan, thence Southerly along said Lake to 
the South Section line, thence East to point of beginning, 
Township of Grand Haven, County of Ottawa, State of Michigan. 

Under the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Subject Property and the 

Quist Property will be subject to common regulatory and supervisory requirements and will be 

jointly referred to as the "Roadend Property." 

Aereement 

In consideration of the above stated facts and the mutual covenants contained 

herein, it is agreed as follows: 

3 



1. Interests Of The Parties In Subject Property. The parties agree and 

acknowledge that Kool has fee simple title to the Subject Property subject to the interests of 

Ottawa, the Township and the Intervenors as specifically stated and defined in this Agreement. 

Ottawa, the Township and the Intervenors acknowledge and agree that they have no claim or 

interest in the Subject Property other than as stated in the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement. 

2. Perpetual Public Easement In Subject Property. The parties agree and 

acknowledge that Ottawa and the Township have a perpetual easement in the Subject Property 

for use by the public as a roadway or footpath to and from Lake Michigan for swimming, 

sunbathing, shore fishing and related activities thereto, subject to the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement. The public's use shall also include the right to consume food and beverages on the 

Subject Property but limited by the conditions and restrictions ofthis Agreement. 

3. Perpetual Public Easement In Quist Property. The Quist Property is 

subject to use by the Public as a roadway or footpath to and from Lake Michigan as provided in 

the Muller judgment. The Quists hereby agree that the Quist Property may also be used for 

swimming, sunbathing, shore fishing and related activities thereto, subject to the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement. The public's use shall also include the right to consume food and 

beverages on the Quist Property but limited by the conditions and restrictions of this Agreement. 

4. Fence and Gate. The Township shall construct at its expense a fence 

running north and south across the Roadend Property for the purpose of blocking access to Lake 

Michigan from Buchanan Street during the time periods specified in this Agreement. The fence 

4 



shall run from the south boundary line to the north boundary line of the Road end Property on 

a line two feet west of the asphalt paving for the parking area at the end of Buchanan Street. The 

fence shall be a steel, cyclone-type fence 8 feet high and shall provide access to Lake Michigan 

through a pedestrian gate that can be opened to permit access by emergency and maintenance 

vehicles as needed. The 8 foot fence shall also be extended west for a distance of 20 feet along 

the north and south boundary lines of the Roadend Property at the expense of the Township. The 

fence shall be maintained and replaced as necessary during the term of this Agreement by the 

Township. 

5. Additional Boundarv Fences. The Township, at its expense, shall also 

place and maintain steel roll fences along the north and south boundary lines of the Roadend 

Property which shall extend from the high water line of Lake Michigan east to the west end of 

the 8 foot fences that extend west along the north and south boundaries of the Roadend Property, 

as described above in paragraph 4. The Township will place and maintain appropriate signs on 

the boundary fences to inform the public that the property on the other side of the boundary 

fences is private property. 

6. Time of Use and Supervision. From May 15 through September 30 of 

each year, the Roadend Property will be closed to the public each night no later than 10:00 p.m. 

and reopened the next morning no earlier than 8:00 a.m. The Township shall provide at its 

expense a gatekeeper for the purpose of opening and closing the gate each day that the gate is 

required to be opened or closed as provided herein. The gatekeeper's responsibilities shall 

5 



include causing people to vacate the Roadend Property when the gate is closed. If necessary, 

the gatekeeper will call the appropriate police department for assistance. 

7. Parking Restrictions. Parking at the west end of Buchanan Street shall 

be limited to the parking area lying immediately east of the north-south fence described in 

paragraph 4 and to no more than eight (8) vehicles. The Township shall appropriately delineate 

the parking spaces by yellow lines or other appropriate markings. This parking area shall be 

closed to parking each day from 10:00 p.m. to 8:00a.m. In addition, subject to the necessary 

approval of the Michigan State Police Department, the Township and/or Ottawa shall cause both 

sides of Buchanan Street and Bluewater Road to be subject to 24-hour-a-day "No Parking" 

restrictions 7 days a week for a distance of 300 feet from the intersection of the center lines of 

the two roads. The "No Parking" restrictions shall be enforced by the Township by the issuance 

of violation tickets and, if necessary, by tow-away services. 

8. Restrictions on Use. The Township shall limit the use of the Roadend 

Property to no more than ninety (90) people at any one time. In addition, the Township shall 

apply and enforce, with respect to the Roadend Property, the rules and regulations as currently 

set forth in Township Ordinance No. 39, effective August 2, 1980, as presently amended. Rules 

and regulations shall also preclude possession or use of alcoholic beverages. 

9. Limitations on Facilities and Use. No improvements shall be made to 

or placed upon the Road end Property except for the fences described in Paragraphs 4 and 5, trash 

receptacles and improvements necessary to control erosion. The Roadend Property is not to be 

considered a park and the Township and Ottawa shall not encourage the public to use the 

6 

bcargo
Highlight

bcargo
Highlight



property. Accordingly, the Township and Ottawa shall not place or allow to be placed upon the 

Roadend Property items such as picnic tables, toilet facilities, running water, playground 

equipment, decking, or any other facilities for use by the public. Nor is the Roadend Property 

to be used by the public for vehicles of any kind including but not limited to all-terrain vehicles, 

snowmobiles or trailers. The Roadend Property is not to be a launching area for boats or jet skis 

or any other watercraft. Access to vehicles shall be limited to those vehicles necessary to effect 

erosion control under paragraph 11. 

10. Supervision ofRoadend Property. In addition to providing a gatekeeper 

as provided in paragraph 6, the Township will hire or assign a person ("Supervisor") 

commencing the third weekend of June and continuing through Labor Day Weekend for the 

purpose of assisting in the enforcement of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, including 

without limitation, the enforcement ofthe 90-person limit, the parking limitations and all other 

rules and regulations pertaining to the use of the Roadend Property. The Supervisor shall have 

authority to issue violation citations for illegal parking and unlawful activities, and to prevent 

entry to the Roadend Property when the 90-person limit has been met. The compensation paid 

to the Supervisor shall be offset by proceeds from civil infraction citations, including parking 

violations, issued to violators. If the proceeds from the citations are not sufficient to cover the 

compensation of the Supervisor, then the owner of the Subject Property will reimburse the 

Township for the cost not covered by such proceeds. During the effective period of this 

Agreement, the owner of the Subject Property and the Township shall, in good faith, attempt to 

confer and mutually agree upon the times and dates when the Supervisor will be on duty, it being 

7 

bcargo
Highlight



understood that the Supervisor's services would normally be required only on weekends and 

holidays. In the event mutual agreement cannot be reached between the owner of the Subject 

Property and the Township, or if the owner of the Subject Property should decide that the 

expense is unwarranted, then the owner of the Subject Property shall have the right, at his/her 

discretion, to modify the times when the Supervisor's services shall be provided by providing 

30 days notice to the Township. If the owner of the Subject Property fails, neglects or refuses 

to reimburse the Township for the compensation of the Supervisor as required herein, then the 

Township shall give written notice to the owner of the Subject Property that the Supervisor's 

services shall be terminated unless payment is received by the Township within fifteen ( 15) days 

ofthe mailing ofthe notice. If payment is not received by the Township by the specified date, 

the Township shall have no further obligation to provide the Supervisor, unless and until the 

Township and Kool reach a mutual agreement as to again providing the Supervisor. 

Notwithstanding the termination of the Supervisor's services, termination of the Supervisor 

would not abate or change the Township's responsibility of enforcement as provided in 

paragraph 8. 

11. Erosion Control. The Township shall be responsible for stabilizing the 

sand dunes and sandy areas and preventing their erosion and shall periodically repair damage 

caused by foot traffic and other uses of the Roadend Property. 

12. Township's Obligation To Enforce Agreement. Under this Agreement, 

the Township has the affirmative duty to fence and maintain the Roadend Property, to prevent 

and promptly repair damage to the fences and signs due to vandalism or other causes, to control 

8 



loud and obnoxious behavior of the public, to enforce and supervise the parking restrictions and 

restrictions on use of the Road end Property as set forth in paragraphs 7, 8, 9 and 10 of this 

Agreement. If the Township neglects its duties under this Agreement or if use by the public of 

the Roadend Property is determined to be unreasonable and violative of this Agreement, 

including the rules, regulations and ordinances applicable to the Roadend Property, then the 

owners of the Subject Property and/or the Quist Property shall have the right to enforce this 

Agreement as provided in paragraphs 13 and 14 herein. 

13. Rights Of Enforcement. It is acknowledged and agreed by the parties that 

violation by the Township or members of the public of the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement or the ordinance provisions relating to the use of the Roadend Property will result 

in immeasurable and irreparable harm to the owners of the Subject Property and the Quist 

Property, by diminishing or substantially eliminating their right to the peaceful and quiet 

enjoyment and use of their respective properties which lie adjacent to the Roadend Property. 

Accordingly, the owners of the Subject Property and/or the Quist Property shall have the right 

to enforce this Agreement by filing an appropriate action in Ottawa County Circuit Court 

seeking relief and/or recovery in law and equity, including the right to injunctive relief and 

damages or such other relief as may be determined appropriate by the Court. In the event the 

Court issues an injunction to enforce all or a portion of the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement and it is thereafter determined by the Court that the Township has failed or refused 

to comply with the provisions of the injunction or if it is determined by the Court that actions 

by members of the public have resulted in substantial violations of the injunction despite the 

9 



.· 

good faith efforts of the Township to regulate and control the use of the Roadend Property by 

members of the public, then the Court shall have the right and option to terminate this 

Agreement. 

14. Effect of Termination or Abandonment. In the event this Agreement 

is terminated or if the Township and/or Ottawa abandons its use of the Roadend Property, or any 

portion thereof, then: 

(a) Fee simple title of the Subject Property shall remain in the 
ownership of the owner of the Subject Property and any 
and all rights of the Township and/or Ottawa and the public 
under this Agreement or otherwise shall cease and be 
forever terminated. 

(b) Fee simple title to the Quist Property shall revert to the 
owner of the Quist Property and any and all rights of the 
Township and/or Ottawa and the public under this 
Agreement or otherwise to that property shall cease and be 
forever terminated. 

(c) All fences on the Roadend Property shall remain on the 
property and shall be owned by the owner of the property. 
Following termination or abandonment, neither the 
Township nor Ottawa shall have any further responsibility 
for upkeep or maintenance of the Roadend Property. 

(d) Notwithstanding the provisions ofsubparagraphs 14(a), (b) 
and (c) herein, termination of this Agreement or 
abandonment of the perpetual public easements granted 
under paragraphs 2 and 3 of this Agreement shall not affect 
that portion of the Subject Property lying east of the west 
line of Bluewater Road as described within the plat known 
as Sheldon Beach Subdivision and as that west line of 
Bluewater Road is extended to the south line of the 
Roadend Property, it being understood that this portion of 
the Roadend Property shall continue to be used for roadway 
purposes. 

10 



.· 

15. Dismissal or Administrative Closing of Litigation. All ofthe parties to 

the Litigation hereby consent to allow the Litigation to be administratively closed until October 

16, 1996 or, in the Court's discretion, to be dismissed in accordance with either the Order 

Administratively Closing Case, attached as Exhibit 1, or the Order of Dismissal, attached as 

Exhibit 2. The format of the proposed Orders are drafted to accommodate the intent of 

paragraph 16 herein. 

16. Termination Without Cause. Notwithstanding any and all of the 

provisions contained in the Agreement to the contrary, the owner of the Subject Property shall 

have the right, at his/her discretion, to terminate this Agreement and to reinstate the pending 

Litigation or to commence a separate legal action provided such action is taken or commenced 

on or before October 15, 1996. In the event such action is taken, then this Agreement and any 

activities, discussions, correspondence and any other events relating to the attempts of the parties 

to settle the Litigation shall have no bearing and specifically may not be submitted in evidence 

or considered by the Court with respect to the reopened or reinstated litigation or to any new case 

or legal action between the parties relating to the Roadend Property. 

17. Separate Agreement Between Kool and Intervenors. During the term 

of this Agreement, the Intervenors shall be considered members of the public and shall be 

subject to the restriction~ relating to use of the Roadend Property as set forth in this Agreement. 

If this Agreement is terminated or abandoned, then the Intervenors or their successors in interest 

will be allowed to use the Subject Property as a footpath for access to and from Lake Michigan, 

including the right to use such property for swimming, sunbathing, and shore fishing, subject to 

11 



the terms and conditions of an easement granted by Kool to the Intervenors concurrently with 

this Agreement. 

18. Real Estate Taxes. During the term of this Agreement, the Roadend 

Property will not be subject to real estate property taxes and accordingly will not be assessed to 

the owners of the property for the reason that the property is subject to the use of the public as 

provided by the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

19. Recording of Agreement. This Agreement shall be executed in a form 

appropriate for recording with the Ottawa County Register of Deeds Office and shall be so 

recorded. 

20. Successors In Interest. This Agreement shall apply for the benefit of and 

shall be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective heirs, successors in interest and 

assigns with respect to the Roadend Property and shall run with the land. The parties, including 

the Township, agree and acknowledge that Ottawa may relinquish jurisdiction or transfer legal 

responsibility for the Subject Property to the Township. 

21. Enforceabilitv Of Agreement. This Agreement shall be subject to and 

conditioned upon the enforceability of the provisions of this Agreement as a matter of law. In 

the event it is determined that this Agreement is unenforceable as to the Township or Ottawa, 

then this Agreement shall be void and of no effect. In such event, the affect of this Agreement 

and the negotiations leading up to the Agreement shall be treated in the same manner as if the 

Agreement were terminated under paragraph 16 . 

12 



22. Execution of Agreement bv Kathy J. Kool. This Agreement is executed 

by Kathy J. Kool, wife of Douglas Kool, to acknowledge her full consent with the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement. 

Witnesses: 

Douglas Kool 

Kathy J. Kool 

BOARD OF OTTAWA COUNTY 
ROAD COMMISSIONERS 

By /:;?iL.£6?../£~ 
/Its /l;/4 "~""-.,./""" ZJ.. •. ·cc jcl_.-./ 

/ I 

TOWNSHIP OF GRAND HAVEN 

By (2L7Z_4 
.~ /Z:L...-.II<y , t.> C r t'E?/VIftl/L 

13 



. ' 

Anna Pontoni 

i CL\ Q 'Y\. w~ A--~ 
) Karen Wasson 

Leslie Wills 

Datus Allen 

Mabel Allen 

L~ - . 
~ Sus,;;, Bettend~} X __ Jt;;t---

14 



' . 

Martha Jane Quist 

Gordon J. Quist 

STATE OF :MICHIGAN ) 
)ss 

County of Kent ) 

The foregoing Settlement Agreement was acknowledged before me this _ day 
of February, 1996 by Douglas Kool. 

Notary Public, Kent County, :MI 
My commission expires: ____ _ 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
)ss 

County of ) 

The foregoing Settlement Agreement was acknowledged before me this_ day 
of February, 1996 by Kathy J. Kool 

Notary Public, County, :MI 
My commission expires: ------

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
)ss 

County of Ottawa ) 

MJ(l.rc4- The foregoing Settlement Agreement was acknowledged bef~re me this .'j~day 
oft<ecruary, 1996 by ~ .,, «-«1 Lki:.L:--r- , ,#1-/.c.a,,.,;.7 tJ.r-~.-z'vt. on behalf of the 
Board of Ottawa County Road Commissioners. 1 

~~ 
MICHAEL: C. MlK!TA 

;.:otC!r\' Public_ Ot•i!w'.l Co., Mich. 

15 



:' · ' 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
)ss 

County of Ottawa ) 

~A~tt- The foregoing Settlement Agreement was ac~c~~-~~1~~~ before me this lsr day 
of Fl:lary, 1996 by Jct~N tV() ;C.rlen..... , S<.II:J•"?CVr-:;, .. "2.... , on behalfofthe 
Township of Grand Haven. 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
)ss 

County of Ottawa ) 

Notary Pu 1c, Ottawa County, MI 
My commission expires: ~;-/1- .96 
?1•i'-•? ~ ~.~-L).-("; 

nLJ/J1 j The foregoing Settlement Agreement was acknowledged before me this;;)/~ day 
of~, 1996 by Mark Welch. 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
)ss 

County of Ottawa ) 

sfiMs ¥:!!~ 
otary Public, ~ County, MI 

My commission ex~~is: L/- 0 - 9 7 
A c.-h? ;,..., O-l+f4.t.Jr.. CDu~.j-"t 

Q~, L The foregoing Settlement Agreement was acknowledged before me thisQ?Jsf day 
of february,' 1996 by Judy Bregman. 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 

County of Ottawa 

) 
)ss 
) 

~0 ~~wd.n tary Public, ~~county, MI 
171/t''ftl.t'! 

My commission expires: Ot/- 0 fo -CJ7 
}q c .finJ i h 01-f..tAtJ~ Ccu~'~ry 

O..Ma The foregoing Settlement Agreement was acknowledged before me thisci//.sf day 
of~ 1996 by Jeffrey Hughes and Nancy Hughes. 

tary Public, County, MI 
My commission A~!~: dt/-o& -97 
flc...J/nj in OHatJ~t.. COvnf..{ 

16 



.· . 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
)ss 

County of Ottawa ) 

G ~ The foregoing Settlement Agreement was acknowledged before me this 2f flay 
of~, 1996 by Anna Pontoni. 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
)ss 

County of Ottawa ) 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
)ss 

County of Ottawa ) 

~M em S fjk~,JU:kr 
otary Pubhc, ~ County, MI 

My commission txp'fffts~ 000 6 - 9 7 

J4cl/,i ~~ OHtclt.lVv ~""!/ 

otary Public ~a County, .MI 
My commission 1xpif~~: £/- t, - 97 
f./c..hi-lj 1n 01-t((wc... 0J._,.,A; 

~ The foregoing Settlement Agreement was acknowledged before me thi~/SJ.day 
o F)', 1996 by Carl Wasson and Karen Wasson. 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
)ss 

County of Ottawa ) 

~S..~wrka 
otary Public, ~ County, MI 

My commission4l~Pf~s: 0{-06 · 9 7 
/k.-f; ·,-,{ ,, O#a~ Ui unf1 

(1f1Ail The foregoing Settlement Agreement was acknowledged before me thi~day 
of~ 1996 by Jeffrey Wills and Leslie Wills. 

J . 
otary Public, County, MI 

I "Pfii" 
My commission expues: 0 7'- 0 (p- '!7 
fl c:hJ 1/1 O#@.lte. Cc vn t 

17 



' ' 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
)ss 

County of Ottawa ) 

OnAi ( The foregoing Settlement Agreement was acknowledged before me thi&J/~ day 
of~ 1996 by Datus Allen and Mabel Allen. 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
)ss 

County of Ottawa ) 

otary Public, County, Nil 
My commissio:ex'¢i~~s: 0 ~- 0 b -9 7 
l}~hnJ in 0 /ftttJ4 Ci) .. md 

(H;,.u-[ The foregoing Settlement Agreement was acknowledged before me this d ;sf
day of~, 1996 by Donald Bettendorf and Susan Bettendorf. 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

County of Kent 
)ss 
) 

N6tary Public, County, MI 
,..,~,... 

My commission exi'ires: 0'/-06 -27 
If v/-th/ /-,.., Or+~IJA.. ~ vr.1 

The foregoing Settlement Agreement was acknowledged before me this 
day ofFebruttry; 1996 by Gordon J. Quist and Martha Jane Quist. 

Notary Public, Kent County, MI 
My commission expires: ____ _ 

MILLER, JOHNSON, SNELL & CUM1v1ISKEY, P.L.C. 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 

By __________________________________ __ 

Boyd A. Henderson (P 14865) 

18 



: .I 

CUNNINGHAM DALMAN, P.C. 
Attorneys for Defendant Board of Ottawa County 
Road Commissioners 

3-9- G 

BUSSARD & SIELSKI 

BREGMAN & WELCH 
Attorneys for Defendant Intervenors 

19 



1 

 

 

 

 

 

SUPERINTENDENT'S  MEMO 

 

 DATE: September 19, 2015 

 

 TO: Township Board 

 

FROM: Bill Cargo  

 

SUBJECT: Extend Election Inspection Contract 

 

 

Attached, please find an agreement to extend the Township’s electrical inspection services with Gord 

Bosch (i.e., Electrical Inspection Service, LLC) for an additional three years.  Bosch has provided 

electrical inspection services for the Township for over nine years  

 

The agreement will replace the 2012 agreement and includes a rate increase from the current $45 per 

inspection to $50 per inspection to help defray the costs of additional code enforcement requirements 

by the State of Michigan.  (See attached letter.)  Bosch has been averaging about 56 inspections per 

month during 2015. 

  

If the Board supports the agreements as presented, the following motions can be offered: 

 

Move to authorize Superintendent Cargo to execute a three-year inspection 

agreement with Gordon Bosch for electrical inspection services. 

 

Please contact me if you have any questions or comments. 



CONTRACT 

THIS AGREEMENT is made the 29
th

 day of September 2015, by and between the 

following parties: 

Charter Township of Grand Haven (“The Township”) 

13300 168
th

 Avenue 

Grand Haven, Michigan  49417 

and 

Gordon Bosch (Bosch) d/b/a Electrical Inspection Services, LLC 

996 College Avenue 

Holland, Michigan  49423 

RECITALS 

A. The Township is a governmental subdivision that has elected to administer and 

enforce the Stille-DeRossett-Hale Single State Construction Code Act (“Act” – MCL 125.1501, 

et seq.) and the State Construction Code, including the Michigan Building Code, as adopted by 

the State of Michigan (the “Building Code”); the Michigan Mechanical Code, as adopted by the 

State of Michigan (the “Mechanical Code”); the Michigan Electrical Code, as adopted by the 

State of Michigan (the “Electrical Code”); and the Michigan Plumbing Code, as adopted by the 

State of Michigan (the “Plumbing Code”).  Collectively, the Building Code, the Mechanical 

Code, the Electrical Code and the Plumbing Code are referred to as the “Codes.” 

B. Bosch is properly licensed and certified to perform electrical permitting, 

inspecting and enforcing services under the Codes, and is in the business of providing these 

services for governmental units in Michigan. 

C. The Township desires to hire the services of Bosch to perform electrical code 

permitting, inspection and enforcement services for the Township’s Community Development 

Department.   

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree to the following terms: 

1. RETENTION OF THE CONTRACTOR:  The Township hereby retains Bosch to 

serve as an independent contractor providing permitting, inspection and enforcement 

services under the Codes within the Township limits on an “as needed” basis.  Bosch 

hereby agrees to provide such services when requested by the Township. 

 

2. DUTIES OF THE CONTRACTOR:  Bosch shall have and agrees to perform the 

following duties: 

a. Perform all permitting, inspecting and enforcing services under the Codes; 

b. Acquire and maintain a full working knowledge of the Codes; 

c. Complete and provide to the Township a permanent record of the duties 

performed pursuant to this Agreement; 

d. Prepare and approve permits, inspection certificates and notices of violation as 

may be required under the Codes, for issuance by the Township; 



e. Consult with and assist the Township, its administrative staff and its attorneys 

with respect to problems with particular construction projects, prosecutions 

for violations of the Codes, questions of interpretation or application of the 

Codes and other matters relating to the performance of inspections and the 

enforcement of the Codes; 

f. Perform all duties in a timely and competent manner which is satisfactory to 

the Township: and 

g. At all times during the term of this Agreement, maintain all licenses and/or 

certifications required to permit Bosch to conduct permitting, inspecting and 

enforcing services under the odes for the Township. 

 

3. COMPENSATION:  As compensation for services to be provided by Bosch, the 

Township agrees to pay him fifty dollars ($50.00) per inspection, which is actually 

performed by Bosch.  

 

Payment for Bosch’s services shall be paid to Gordon Bosch d/b/a Electrical 

Inspection Services, LLC. 

 

4. HOURS:  Bosch shall schedule all inspections through the offices of the Township 

pursuant to any limitations of state law.  Further, he agrees to be reasonably available 

and for sufficient amounts of time as the need for such inspections demands. 

 

5. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  Bosch acknowledges that in performance of all 

work and duties pursuant to the Agreement, Bosch shall be at all times performing as 

an independent contractor.  Except for compliance with the provisions of this 

Agreement, the Township shall neither have nor exercise any control or direction 

over the methods and means by which Bosch performs his duties and work.  Bosch 

shall provide and maintain, at his sole expense, all equipment and supplies necessary 

to perform the duties required under this Agreement and to pay all ancillary expenses 

related to such performance.  Bosch shall provide for his own transportation for the 

performance of duties under this Agreement and shall be responsible for all expenses 

related to the operation of the motor vehicle(s), including without limitation, fuel, 

repair, maintenance, insurance and other incidental expenses. 

 

6. INSURANCE, WORKER’S COMPENSATION, INDEMNIFICATION: 

a. Vehicle Insurance.  Bosch, at his sole expense, shall secure and maintain in 

force comprehensive motor vehicle liability insurance during the term of this 

Agreement and shall provide the Township with a copy of the certificate of 

insurance upon request from the Township. 

b. Comprehensive General Liability Insurance.  Bosch, at his sole expense, shall 

secure and maintain in forced comprehensive general liability insurance 

during the term of the Agreement and shall provide the Township with a copy 

of the certificate of insurance upon request from the Township.  Such 

insurance shall include the Township as an additional named insured and shall 

provide general liability coverage for property damage and personal injury 



(including death) arising from any act or omission of Bosch in the minimum 

coverage limits: 

i. $1,000,000 per occasion; 

ii. $2,000,000 aggregate. 

c. Worker’s Compensation Insurance.  Bosch, at his sole expense, shall secure 

and maintain in force worker’s compensation insurance during the term of this 

Agreement, in compliance with applicable worker’s compensation laws. 

 

7. GOVERNMENTAL FUNCTION:  The parties agree that the duties performed under 

this Agreement are governmental functions in accordance with the Act of the Codes.  

No party shall waive or otherwise act to jeopardize any immunity available to the 

other party. 

 

8. INDEMNIFICATION:    Bosch agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Township 

and its officers, employees, representatives and agents from and against all claims, 

demands, actions, causes of action, losses, liability and costs/expenses (including 

reasonable attorney fees) in any manner arising from or related to the Contractor’s 

acts and omissions in matters involving its duties and responsibilities under this 

Agreement.  Each party shall notify the other party of any knowledge and information 

which may result in a claim against either of them, and shall cooperate with the other 

party whenever any claim is filed against either party involving, in any manner, the 

performance of this Agreement. 

 

9. MISCELLANEOUS:  Limited by the oversight and approval of the Township and its 

legal staff, Bosch shall have authority and discretion to issue citations for violations 

of the Codes.  If Bosch is required to attend court for such purpose, then he shall 

receive additional compensation of $50.00 per hour for such time, measured from 

when he is obligated to arrive at court and when he is released from his court 

obligation for the day. 

 

10. TERM:  The term of this agreement commences October 1, 2015 and exists until 

September 30, 2018, unless terminated by either party by giving sixty (60) days 

written notice to the other party.   

 

11. SUBSTITUTE:  In the event that Bosch is unavailable due to illness or vacation or 

for any other reason, he or the Township shall have the discretion to appoint a 

substitute inspector to act on his behalf. Provided, that any such substitute inspector 

shall be appointed by Bosch or the Township only from a list of preapproved 

substitutes, such list of preapproved substitutes to have all the appropriate 

qualifications and to have been approved in advance by the Township Board.  

Payment for the substitute inspector shall be made by the Township to Bosch, who 

will reimburse his substitute(s) directly. 

 

This agreement shall constitute the full agreement and understanding of the parties.  Any 

modification or alteration of it shall be in writing and signed by both parties. 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the date first written 

above. 

  

By ____________________________________ 

 William D. Cargo, Superintendent 
 

  

By ____________________________________ 

Gordon Bosch 

 

SUBSTITUTION LIST 

 

1. John DeRochey - The current electrical inspector for the City of Holland 

(616) 836-6967 

2. Glen Veldheer - the current electrical inspector for the City of Zeeland 

(616) 218-3904 

















 
 Page -1- 

 

 

 

 

 

SUPERINTENDENT'S  MEMO 

 

 DATE: September 21, 2015 

 

 TO: Township Board 

 

FROM: Cargo 

 

SUBJECT: Parks and Open Carry 

 

 

The Township Board gave a first reading to an ordinance that will modify the Park Rules and 

Regulations Ordinance be modified with regard to firearm possession.   

 

In brief, the proposed language would be 

changed to simply note that firearms are not 

allowed, except in compliance with Michigan law. 

 (Please see attached ordinance.)   

 

The park rules signs would remain the 

same since GHT’s law enforcement staff 

understand the limitations inherent in trying to 

control or prohibit the “open carry” of firearms in 

public venues, such as parks.  (Please see adjacent 

picture.) 

 

 To approve this ordinance amendment, the 

following motion can be offered: 

 

Move to approve and adopt the proposed 

amendment to the Parks Rules and Regulations 

Ordinance pertaining to the possession of 

firearms.  This is a second reading. 

 

If you have any questions or comments, 

please contact Cargo at your convenience. 

 

 

 



 
 Page -2- 

 

PARK RULES AND REGULATIONS AMENDMENT ORDINANCE 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF GRAND HAVEN, MICHIGAN 

Ord. No. _____, Eff. _______________, 2015 

 

 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR 

THE USE AND MAINTENANCE OF PLACES OF RECREATION AND FOR 

THE GOVERNMENT OF TOWNSHIP PARKS WITHIN THE CHARTER 

TOWNSHIP OF GRAND HAVEN, OTTAWA COUNTY, MICHIGAN, 

SPECIFICALLY PERTAINING TO THE POSSESSION OF FIREARMS OR 

WEAPONS. 

 

GRAND HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP, COUNTY OF OTTAWA, AND STATE OF 

MICHIGAN, ORDAINS: 

 

Section 1.  Possession of Firearms or Weapons.  Section 4.3 of the Grand Haven Charter 

Township Park Rules and Regulations Ordinance is amended in its entirety (the balance of Section 4 

remains unchanged) to provide that in a Township Park or recreation area, no person, firm, or 

corporation shall: 

 

 3. Possess a firearm or weapon in a Township Park or recreation area, unless the 

person is a sworn police officer acting within the scope of the officer's duties 

or has a valid concealed pistol license, and except as otherwise allowed by 

federal or state law. 

 

 Section 2.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance was approved and adopted by the Township 

Board of the Charter Township of Grand Haven, Ottawa County, Michigan, on 

____________________, after introduction and a first reading on ______________, and publication 

after such first reading as required by Michigan Act 359 of 1947, as amended.  This Ordinance shall 

be effective on ______________, which date is at least 30 days after publication of the Ordinance. 

 

 

 

___________________________        ______________________________ 

Karl French, Supervisor    Laurie Larsen, Clerk 

 

 

 

 



 Page 1 

 

 

Superintendent’s Memo 
 

 DATE: September 21, 2015 

 

 TO: Township Board 

 

 FROM: Bill 

 

 RE: Second Reading – Water Rate and Sewer Rate Ordinances 

 

 

 

The Township Board approved the first reading of both the Water Rate and Sewer Rate 

ordinances that implement a 3% utility rate increase annually for the next five years (i.e., 2016 

through 2020).  This is 1% point less (or 25% less) than what was included in the “Three-Year” 

budget exercise that the Board and staff recently completed; is 1% point less than what the 

previous COS study recommended; and, the rate increase is equal to the projected inflation 

rate during this same five-year period. 

 

It is also noted that the trunkage fees and connection charges for new users are 

recommended to remain the same during this same period, which means that these fees will 

remain unchanged from 2010 through 2020. 

 

In order to provide final approval of the respective rate ordinances, the following motion 

can be offered: 

 

Move to approve and adopt the ordinance amendment to the Water Rate 

Ordinance, which implements a 3% per year increase between 2016 and 

2020, until the September 28
th

 Board meeting.  This is a second reading. 

 

Move to approve and adopt the ordinance amendment to the Sewer Rate 

Ordinance, which implements a 3% per year increase between 2016 and 

2020, until the September 28
th

 Board meeting.  This is a second reading. 

 

If you have any questions or comments, please contact me or Sandoval at your 

convenience. 



 1 

ORDINANCE NO. *** 

 

SEWER RATE 2016 – 2020 AMENDMENT ORDINANCE 

GRAND HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

 

 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND EXHIBIT “A” OF THE CHARTER 

TOWNSHIP OF GRAND HAVEN SEWER RATE ORDINANCE 

AMENDNG THE RATE STRUCTURE. 

 

GRAND HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP, COUNTY OF OTTAWA, AND STATE OF 

MICHIGAN, ORDAINS: 

 

Section 1.  Rate Structure.  Exhibit A of the Sewer Rate Ordinance containing the schedule of 

rates and charges is re-stated in its entirety as follows. 

 

EXHIBIT A 

SCHEDULE OF SEWER RATES & CHARGES 

 

Sewer Trunkage Charge 

Meter Size June 1, 2010 

1” or less $2,879 

1½” $11,200 

2” $19,910 

2½” $31,110 

3” $44,800 

4” $79,645 

6” $179,200 

 

Interest rate and installment schedule at 6.16% Interest 

  

AMOUNT OF 

TRUNKAGE 

MAXIMUM DURATION 

OF AMORTIZATION 

ANNUAL PAYMENTS 

RANGE 

$2,875 - $9,999 5 years $785 - $2,616 

$10,000 - $24,999 8 years $1,866 - $4,665 

$25,000 - $49,999 10 years $4,040 - $8,080 

$50,000 + 15 years $6,413 + 

 

Other Charges 

1. Sewer line inspection - $35 

2. Stub charge - $1,500 

3. Late Fee Penalty for Sewer Utility bills is 10% 

  

 

 



 2 

Sewer Use Rate per 1,000 gallons* 

Rate Monthly Q Q2 Q3 

$3.23 Jan. 1, 2016 Jan.1, 2016 Feb. 1, 2016 March 1, 2016 

$3.32 Jan. 1, 2017 Jan.1, 2017 Feb. 1, 2017 March 1, 2017 

$3.41 Jan. 1, 2018 Jan.1, 2018 Feb. 1, 2018 March 1, 2018 

$3.51 Jan. 1, 2019 Jan.1, 2019 Feb. 1, 2019 March 1, 2019 

$3.61 Jan. 1, 2020 Jan.1, 2020 Feb. 1, 2020 March 1, 2020 

* All residential customers are charged a minimum of 1,000 gallons per month. 

 

Customer Service Charge – Monthly Charge per residential equivalent unit (REU) 

Rate Q Q2 Q3 

$13.13 Jan.1, 2016 Feb. 1, 2016 March 1, 2016 

$13.52 Jan.1, 2017 Feb. 1, 2017 March 1, 2017 

$13.92 Jan.1, 2018 Feb. 1, 2018 March 1, 2018 

$14.33 Jan.1, 2019 Feb. 1, 2019 March 1, 2019 

$14.75 Jan.1, 2020 Feb. 1, 2020 March 1, 2020 

 

Non-Residential Customer Service Charge – Monthly Charge per Residential Equivalent Unit (i.e., 1 

REU = 200 gallons of actual water consumption per day, which is determined annually by Township 

staff.)  The REU cannot be less than one. 

 

The original REU is calculated using the Residential Equivalence/Unit Factor Table included as part 

of the Exhibit unless a comparable business (i.e., substantially similar business within West 

Michigan connected to a municipal metered water supply) can be found and the comparable 

business’ previous annual water usage verified by Township staff. 

Residential Equivalence/Unit Factor  

Jan. 1, 2016 Jan. 1, 2017 Jan. 1, 2018 Jan. 1, 2019 Jan. 1, 2020 

$13.13/REU $13.52/REU $13.92/REU $14.33/REU 14.75/REU 

 

 

Special Residential Flat Rate – Quarterly Charge for both the Customer Service Charge and Sewer 

Use Rate that can only be used for a single family residential unit that is required to connect to 

sanitary sewer pursuant to State law (i.e., MCL 333.12751 through MCL 333.12758) and Township 

Ordinance (i.e., Section 3.1.4 of the Sewer Usage and Administration Ordinance) and that (a) is not 

connected to a municipal water system and (b) selected not to install a meter to measure their water 

usage from a permitted residential well. 

   Special Residential Flat Rate 

Rate  

$33.62 Jan. 1, 2016 

$34,62 Jan. 1, 2017 

$35.65 Jan. 1, 2018 

$36.71 Jan. 1, 2019 

$37.81 Jan. 1, 2020 

 



 3 

Continuation of Exhibit A 

Residential Equivalence/Unit Factor  Table 
Effective June 1, 2010 

  

Usage Residential Equivalent 

Auto Dealer - Sales and/or Service 1.00/Premise + 0.40/1000 sf 

Bakery 1.25/1,000 s.f. 

Bank 1.00/1,000 s.f. 

Bar 3.00/1,000 s.f. 

Barber Shop 1.00/Premise + 0.10/Chair 

Bed & Breakfast, Boarding House, Boarding 

School, Dormitory, Fraternity, or Sorority 

House 

1.00/Premise + 0.25/Bedroom 

Bowling Alley  0.16/Alley (Bar/Restaurant to be computed at its respective 

REU) 

Car Wash 2.50 - 10.00/Single Production Line 

Chiropractor 1.00/1,000 s.f. 

Church 0.20/1,000 s.f. 

Cleaners (Pick-Up Only) 1.00/Shop 

Cleaners (Pressing Facilities) 1.25/Press 

Convalescent Home 0.22/Bed 

Convenience Store 1.00/1,000 s.f 

Country Club/Golf Club 1.00/1,000 s.f. (Bar/Restaurant to be computed at its 

respective REU) 

Day Care Center 1/00/Premise + 0.25/1,000 s.f. 

Factory (Exclusive of Excess Industrial Use) 0.50/1,000 s.f. 

Fraternal Organization  1.00/Hall (Bar to be Computed at its Respective REU) 

Funeral Home 1.42/1,000 s.f. 

Health Club 1.00/1,000 s.f. + 1.5/8 Showers 

Hospital 1.10/Bed 

Hotel, Motel, Rooming House (without meals) 0.25/Bed 

Laundry (Self Service) 0.54/Washer 

Marina 0.10/Slip (Bar/Restaurant/Retail to be computed at its 

respective REU) 

Mobile Home in Trailer Park 1.00/Unit 

Office Building (General) 0.40/1,000 s.f. 

Office Building (Medical) 1.42/1,000 s.f. 

Pharmacy 1.00/1,000 s.f. 

Post Office 1.00/1,000 s.f. 

Residence - Single Family 1.00/Unit 

Residence - Two Family 1.00/Unit 

Residence - Multi-Family 1.00/Unit 



 4 

Restaurant 2.50/1,000 s.f. (Bar to be computed at its respective REU) 

Restaurant (Drive Thru) 3.00/1,000 s.f. 

Retail Store 1.00/Premise + 0.30/1,000 s.f. 

Salon 1.00/Premise + 0.10/Chair 

School  0.60/Classroom + 1.50/8 Showers (Swimming pool to 

be computed at its respective REU) 

Snack Bar 1.50/1,000 s.f. 

Supermarket/Grocery Store 1.10/1,000 s.f. 

Swimming Pool 2.85/1,000 s.f. 

Theater - Drive In 0.25/1,000 s.f. 

Theater - Indoor 1.00/Screen 

Travel Trailer, Parks & Campground 0.20/Site 

Utility Sub-Station 0.10/1,000 s.f. 

Veterinarian 1.00/1,000 s.f. 

Warehouse or Storage Building 0.10/1,000 s.f. 

Waste Disposal Station 2.00/Station 

 

 Section 2.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance was approved and adopted by the Township 

Board of the Charter Township of Grand Haven, Ottawa County, Michigan, on September 28, 2015, 

after introduction and a first reading on September 14, 2015, and publication after such first reading 

as required by Michigan Act 359 of 1947, as amended.  This Ordinance shall be effective on 

______________, 2015, which date is 30 days after adoption of the Ordinance. 

 

 

GRAND HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

 

 

 

By:_______________________________  By:_______________________________ 

Karl French, Supervisor    Laurie Larsen, Clerk 

 

 

CERTIFICATE 

 

I, Laurie Larsen, the Clerk for the Charter Township of Grand Haven, Ottawa County, 

Michigan, certify that the foregoing Ordinance was adopted at a regular meeting of the Grand Haven 

Charter Township Board held on September 28, 2015.  The following members of the Township 

Board were present at that meeting: _____________________________________.  The following 

members of the Township Board were absent:  ____________.  The Ordinance was adopted by the 

Township Board with members of the Board __________________________________  voting in 



 5 

favor and no members of the board voting in opposition with _________________ being absent.  

The Ordinance was published after adoption on _______________________, 2015. 

 

 

_______________________________  

Laurie Larsen , Township Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 1 

ORDINANCE NO. *** 

 

WATER RATE 2016 – 2020 AMENDMENT ORDINANCE 

GRAND HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
 

 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND EXHIBIT “A” OF THE 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF GRAND HAVEN WATER 

SYSTEM ORDINANCE AMENDNG THE RATE STRUCTURE. 

 

GRAND HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP, COUNTY OF OTTAWA, AND STATE OF 

MICHIGAN, ORDAINS: 

 

Section 1.  Rate Structure.  Exhibit A of the Water System Ordinance containing the 

schedule of rates and charges is re-stated in its entirety as follows. 

 

EXHIBIT A 

SCHEDULE OF WATER RATES & CHARGES 

 

 

Water Connection Charges 

1. ¾” Meter = $1,100 plus the 110% cost of the copper service piping, as determined by the 

most recent invoice from the supplier, from the corporation stop to the meter set.  All 

copper piping must be purchased in either 60 or 100 foot increments.  (Owner or 

contractor may provide the copper service line to avoid the charge.) 

2. 1” Meter = $1,150 plus the 110% cost of the copper service piping, as determined by the 

most recent invoice from the supplier, from the corporation stop to the meter set.  All 

copper piping must be purchased in either 60 or 100 foot increments.  (Owner or 

contractor may provide the copper service line to avoid the charge.) 

3. Pretap with 3/4″ meter = $700 

4. Pretap with 1″ meter = $800 

5. Larger than 1” Service Line or 1” Meter = Deposit of $2,000.  The charge will be the 

actual cost of the meter, meter set, copper service line, contractor costs (if any),  plus 

10% for overhead.   

 

Water Trunkage Charge – Premises constructed after December 31, 1998  (For premises 

constructed prior to December 31, 1998, there is no trunkage charge for a new connection) 

 

Meter Size Amount 

1" or less $     856 

1.5" $  3,425 

2" $  6,085 

3" $13,695 

4" $24,350 

6" $54,785 

 



 2 

Other Charges 
1. Meter upgrade is charged for actual labor costs, replacement meter, and any materials, 

plus 10% for overhead. 

2. Hydrant rental requires a $75 deposit.  The fee will be $20 for the rental of the meter plus 

the actual water usage. 

3. Water turn on charge for delinquent accounts and cross connections are as follows: 

a. $30 during business hours 

b. $50 after business hours 

4. Meter test charge is $75 

5. Late Fee Penalty for Water Utility bills is 10% 

 

Commodity Charge Per 1,000 gallons 

NOWS Water Monthly Q Q1 Q2 

$2.43 Jan. 1, 2016 Jan. 1, 2016 Feb. 1, 2016 March 1, 2016 

$2.50 Jan. 1, 2017 Jan. 1, 2017 Feb. 1, 2017 March 1, 2017 

$2.57 Jan. 1, 2018 Jan. 1, 2018 Feb. 1, 2018 March 1, 2018 

$2.64 Jan. 1, 2019 Jan. 1, 2019 Feb. 1, 2019 March 1, 2019 

$2.71 Jan. 1, 2020 Jan. 1, 2020 Feb. 1, 2020 March 1, 2020 

 

G. R. Water Monthly Q Q1 Q2 

$2.81 Jan. 1, 2016 Jan. 1, 2016 Feb. 1, 2016 March 1, 2016 

$2.89 Jan. 1, 2017 Jan. 1, 2017 Feb. 1, 2017 March 1, 2017 

$2.97 Jan. 1, 2018 Jan. 1, 2018 Feb. 1, 2018 March 1, 2018 

$3.05 Jan. 1, 2019 Jan. 1, 2019 Feb. 1, 2019 March 1, 2019 

$3.14 Jan. 1, 2020 Jan. 1, 2020 Feb. 1, 2020 March 1, 2020 

 

 

Monthly Residential Customer Service Charge for NOWS and Grand Rapids  

Service Charge Q Q1 Q2 

$12.66 Jan. 1, 2016 Feb. 1, 2016 March 1, 2016 

$13.03 Jan. 1, 2017 Feb. 1, 2017 March 1, 2017 

$13.42 Jan. 1, 2018 Feb. 1, 2018 March 1, 2018 

$13.82 Jan. 1, 2019 Feb. 1, 2019 March 1, 2019 

$14.23 Jan. 1, 2020 Feb. 1, 2020 March 1, 2020 

 

Monthly Commercial Customer Service Charge for NOWS and Grand Rapids  

Meter Size Jan. 1, 2016 Jan. 1, 2017 Jan. 1, 2018 Jan. 1, 2019 Jan. 1, 2020 

¾" Meter $12.66 $13.03 $13.42 $13.82 $14.23 

1" Meter $20.01 $20.61 $21.22 $21.85 $22.50 

1½" Meter $40.47 $41.68 $42.93 $44.21 $45.53 

2" Meter $66.74 $68.74 $70.80 $72.92 $75.10 

3" Meter $15.56 $163.31 $168.20 $173.24 $178.43 

4" Meter $360.80 $371.62 $382.76 $394.24 $406.06 



 3 

 

Monthly Fire Line Charges for NOWS and Grand Rapids customers 

Meter Size Jan. 1, 2016 Jan. 1, 2017 Jan. 1, 2018 Jan 1, 2019 Jan. 1, 2020 

6” or less $11.48 $11.82 $12.17 $12.53 $12.90 

8” $23.12 $23.81 $24.52 $25.25 $26.00 

10” $44.44 $45.77 $47.14 $48.55 $50.00 

12’ $68.90 $70.96 $73.08 $75.27 $77.52 

 

 

 Section 2.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance was approved and adopted by the Township 

Board of the Charter Township of Grand Haven, Ottawa County, Michigan, on September 28, 

2015, after introduction and a first reading on September 14, 2015, and publication after such 

first reading as required by Michigan Act 359 of 1947, as amended.  This Ordinance shall be 

effective on November 1, 2015, which date is 30 days after adoption of the Ordinance. 

 

GRAND HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

 

 

 

By:_______________________________  By:_______________________________ 

Karl French, Supervisor    Laurie Larsen, Clerk 

 

 

CERTIFICATE 
 

I, Laurie Larsen, the Clerk for the Charter Township of Grand Haven, Ottawa County, 

Michigan, certify that the foregoing Ordinance was adopted at a regular meeting of the Grand 

Haven Charter Township Board held on September 28, 2015.  The following members of the 

Township Board were present at that meeting: 

________________________________________________.  The following members of the 

Township Board were absent:  _____________.  The Ordinance was adopted by the Township 

Board with members of the Board _______________________________________ voting in 

favor and no members of the board voting in opposition with _______________ being absent.  

The Ordinance was published after adoption on _________________, 2015. 

 

 

_______________________________  

       Laurie Larsen, Township Clerk 



1 | P a g e  

 

 

Community Development Memo 
 

 DATE:  September 24, 2015 

 

 TO:  Township Board 

 

 FROM: Stacey Fedewa, Planning & Zoning Official 

 

RE:  Grand Haven Financial Center – Rezoning Application (RR to SP) 

 

 

The Grand Haven Financial Center has 

applied to rezone a 5 acre parcel (70-07-09-

400-005) located at 16920 Ferris Street 

from Rural Residential (RR) to 

Service/Professional (SP). 

 

This parcel was formerly owned by the 

Ottawa County Health Department, which 

has an existing 6,200 square foot office 

building.  

 

The rezoning application was tested against 

the “Three C’s” evaluation method 

described in the 2009 Master Plan. 

 

COMPATIBILITY 

 

The zoning for 

parcels that 

border the 

applicants’ lot is: 

 

 

 

The current Future Land Use map calls for the applicants parcel to be zoned Public/Quasi-Public. 

However, because Ottawa County sold this parcel to a private party it will no longer be a public 

or quasi-public use in the future. 

North R-1 

South RR 

East C-1 

West RR 



2 | P a g e  

 

 

Due to this unique circumstance, staff 

reviewed the surrounding future land uses 

in conjunction with the existing use of the 

parcel. As described on the map, the 

applicants parcel is bounded by other 

parcels intended to be developed as 

Office/Service uses.  

 

CONSISTENCY 

 

The proposed rezoning is consistent with 

the existing land use (an office building), as 

well as the intended future land uses 

surrounding the applicants parcel. 

Furthermore, the parcel exceeds the 

minimum design requirements for the SP 

district. The applicant is currently 

occupying the building in an office 

capacity, and intends to maintain said use.  

 

CAPABILITY 

 

Parcels within the SP district should be 

supported certain infrastructure features, including paved roads, natural gas, municipal water supply, 

and sanitary sewer. All features are currently present on site. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

On September 21
st
 the Planning Commission adopted a motion to recommend the Township Board 

approve the rezoning application. If the Township Board agrees with the aforementioned 

recommendation the following motion can be offered: 

 

Motion to present the Zoning Map Amendment Ordinance concerning the rezoning 

of 16920 Ferris Street, Parcel No. 70-07-09-400-005, from Rural Residential (RR) to 

Service/Professional (SP), and to postpone further action until Oct 12
th

 when the 

zoning map amendment ordinance will be considered for adoption and approval. 

This is the first reading. 

 

 

Please contact me prior to the meeting if you have questions. 


	1 - 09282015 - TB Agenda
	2 - 09142015 - TB Minutes
	4 - Memo - Buchanan Road End - Discussion of Settlement Agreement
	5 - Settlement Agreement - Buchanan Road End - No Improvements Highlighted
	6 - Memo - Electrical Inspection Agreement - September of 2015
	7 - Agreement - Bosch E Inspection Services - 2015
	8 - Letter - EIS - 2015 Electrical Inspection Contract
	9 - Truth in Taxation
	10 - Memo - Park Rules and Open Carry - Second Reading
	11 - Memo - 2015 Water Rate and Sewer Rate Ordinance Amendments - Second Reading
	12 - Ordinance - Amending Sewer Rates - 2015
	13 - Ordinance - Amending Water Rates - 2015
	14 - TB Memo - GH Financial Center Rezoning - RR to SP - 1st Reading_09282015

